M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 18, 2002

9:01 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 66, Side A
SFC 02 # 66, Side B
SFC-02 # 67, Side A
SFC 02 # 67, Side B
SFC 02 # 68, Side A
SFC-02 # 68, Side B
SFC 02 # 69, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 9:01 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Donal d 4 son

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senator Loren Leman

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senator Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Also Attending: Testifiers are listed in the body of the mnutes in
the order they testified.

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

HB 403- APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS
SB 289- APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS
HB 404- APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET
SB 288- APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

The Committee heard public testinony from the Legislative
Information O fices in the Mt-Su Borough, Delta Junction,
Ket chi kan, Tok, Wangell, Nome, Kotzebue, Barrow, and Fairbanks as
well as from offnet sites and from testifiers in Juneau. Two
commttee substitutes were adopted, and the bills were held in

SFC- 02 (1) 04/ 18/ 02



Conmittee.

#hb403

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 403(FIN) am( SENATE BILL NO 289

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and | oan
program expenses of state governnent, for certain prograns,
and to capitalize funds; making appropriations under art. |X
sec. 17(c), Constitution of the State of Alaska, from the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing for an
effective date."

#SB289

SENATE BI LL NO. 289

"AN ACT MAKI NG APPROPRI ATIONS FOR THE OPERATI NG AND LOAN
PROGRAM EXPENSES OF STATE GOVERNMENT, FOR CERTAI N PROGRAMS,
AND TO CAPI TALI ZE FUNDS; MAKI NG APPROPRI ATI ONS UNDER ART. 1 X,
SEC. 17(C), CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF ALASKA, FROM THE
CONSTI TUTI ONAL BUDGET RESERVE FUND; AND PROVI DING FOR AN
EFFECTI VE DATE. "

#HB404

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 404(FIN)

"AN ACT MAKI NG APPROPRI ATI ONS FOR THE OPERATI NG AND CAPI TAL
EXPENSES OF THE STATE' S | NTEGRATED COVPREHENS| VE MENTAL HEALTH
PROGRAM AND PROVI DI NG FOR AN EFFECTI VE DATE. "

#SB288

SENATE BI LL NO. 288

"“AN ACT MAKI NG APPRCPRI ATI ONS FOR THE OPERATI NG AND CAPI TAL
EXPENSES OF THE STATE S | NTEGRATED COMPREHENSI VE MENTAL HEALTH
PROGRAM AND PROVI DI NG FOR AN EFFECTI VE DATE."

This was the fourth hearing for these bills in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

SFC- 02 (2) 04/ 18/ 02



Co-Chair Donley announced that public testinony would resune
regarding the FY 03 Operating Budget. He requested testifiers to
limt their remarks to two mnutes in order to provide sufficient
time for all testifiers to coment.

SUSAN MASON- BOUTERSE, Executive Director, Sunshine Community Health
Center and Board Menber, Primary Care Association of Al aska,
testified via tel econference fromMat-Su and noted that the snall,
non-profit health center |ocated in Tal keetna provides a nmultitude
of services to the residents of the area. She shared that the
previous year the Center provided 2,000 individuals with health
care and 6,000 counseling sessions. She stated that although the
Center receives sone federal Community Health Center grant funding,
patient fee revenue, and a small anmount of United Way funds, its
primary funding is through an Assistance to Comunity Health
Facilities (ACHF) grant program through the Division of Public
Heal t h, Departnent of Health and Social Services.

Ms. Mason-Bouterse asserted that the proposed elimnation of the
ACHF grant program would also negatively affect the Center’s
opportunity to receive federal grant program funding would further
impact the Center’s ability to provide services.

Ms. Mason-Bouterse continued, on behalf of the Primary Care
Associ ation of Alaska, that rural clinics that do not receive
federal Community Health Center grant funding rely on the State
ACHF grant program funding “to survive.” She stressed that
elimnation of the ACHF grant program “will be devastating” to
rural clinics and could result in rural clinic closures across the
St ate.

Ms. Mason-Bouterse noted that proposed Senate Operating Budget
reductions to the Departnent of Health and Social Services prograns
such as the Early Infant Learning Program woul d negatively affect
preventive care which could, if maintained, “save the State noney
in the future, not to nention saving incredible hardships for
famlies.” She stressed that cuts to Mental Health and Substance
Abuse prograns would also limt services to individuals and
communities. She voiced understanding of the fiscal challenge
facing the State; however, she urged the Conmittee to not support
t he proposed elinination of $218,000 of the total $315,000 of State
funding dedicated to primary health care nor significantly reduce
the already mnimal funding for other health care and behavi oral
heal th care.

PATRI CI A G COYNE, Menber, Backcountry Aval anche Awar eness Rescue

Team testified via teleconference fromMat-Su to ask the Commttee
to include funding for Aval anche Awareness Educati on Prograns. She

SFC- 02 (3) 04/ 18/ 02



expressed that the $50,000 included in the FY 02 budget provided
funding for a “reach and teach progranf through which twenty
i ndividuals received training that allowed themto teach aval anche
awar eness and search and rescue nethods in their communities. She
stressed the inportance of continuing to educate people on how to
avoi d bei ng caught in an aval anche.

ERIC T. WAGENIUS testified via teleconference from Mat-Su in
support of funding for drug and al cohol recovery centers such as
Nugent’s Ranch. He stated that the program offered at the Ranch
“turned his life around,” and he stated that he is training to
of fer counseling services to others. He urged the Commttee to
continue fundi ng these prograns.

DAVI D BARTHOLMEW Wasilla Area Seniors Incorporated, testified via
tel econference from Mat-Su about the inportance of continuing
kitchen inspections, for he attested, if this program were
el i mnated, senior centers would suffer due to the | oss of funding
food prograns generate.

M. Barthol mew read froman article [copy not provided] authored by
Ray Metcalfe from the Anchorage Daily News that while Al aska
retains 33 percent and the federal governnent retains approxinmately
24 percent of the profits generated by the State’'s oil fields
production, the worldw de average oil field revenue profits
retained by governnments is approximtely 79 percent while oil
conpanies nornally retain approximately 23 percent. He asked the
Conmittee why the State allows oil conpanies to retain nore of the
profit than is the norm and he suggested that the State tax the
oi | conpanies rather than the citizens of the State. He noted that
t he Al aska Permanent Fund Dividend is approximately $1,800 and he
asked the Conmttee why the State could not provide nore noney and
free education to its citizens.

PAULA HANDRI CKS, Al aska Native, testified via tel econference from
Mat-Su to detail the treatnment she had received at the Nugent’s
Ranch Drug and Al cohol Treatnent Center. She urged the Commttee to
retain the Ranch’s funding to enable the Ranch to continue to
provi de treatnent prograns, which, she attested, have enabl ed her
to becone a responsible citizen and parent.

M CHAEL HANDRI CKS testified via tel econference fromMat-Su to voice
support for drug and alcohol treatnent centers’ prograns. He
exclained that the treatnent centers have had a positive inpact on
his life, and that he is now a functioning individual with a job
and a famly and that he pays taxes and child support. He stressed
that treatnment prograns do work, and he urged the Commttee not to
reduce al cohol treatnent program funding.

SFC- 02 (4) 04/ 18/ 02



W LLI AM WALLACE testified via tel econference from Mat-Su that the
proposed $4.75 nmillion funding reduction in treatnment prograns
woul d be harnful to both individuals and communities in the State.
He asserted that private prisons and treatnment prograns in those
pri sons do not worKk.

SUSAN MCKI TTRICK testified via teleconference from Mat-Su and
informed the Commttee that she is a recovering alcoholic who is
testifying in support of rehabilitation centers. She stated that
al coholismis a disease and that many people who suffer fromit
have recei ved assistance fromthe rehabilitation centers and have
becone responsible citizens. She voiced strong opposition to the
proposed Senate’s funding reductions as they would “only serve to
per petuate the probleni by incarcerating nore people but offering
fewer recovery opportunities, and she avowed, would result in
“sentencing people to an untinely death.”

ROBERT HENDRI CKSON testified via teleconference from Mat-Su that
al cohol abuse incurs pain and suffering to famlies, especially
children. He attested that recovery prograns have benefited his
famly; but that other famlies would suffer were funding for
al cohol treatnent and other nental health prograns reduced. He
voi ced support for an inconme tax or the use of Permanent Fund
earnings to provide noney to support these prograns.

DONALD FISCUS testified via teleconference from Mt-Su and
acknowl edged Senator Ward’'s efforts for road inprovenents in the
Kenai Peninsula area. He stated that dwindling State revenue
requires the devel opnent of fiscal responsibility, however, he
characterized the cuts to the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services “to be extrene,” particularly the $4.4 nillion funding
reduction in alcohol and drug abuse prograns thereby denying
treatment to approximtely 1,000 people. He asked the Conmittee
where the noney generated fromcurrent and proposed al cohol taxes
and the noney received fromthe tobacco settlenment fund and tobacco
taxes i s being spent. He asked whether new prison facilities would
be housi ng peopl e who need treatnent for al coholism as he stressed
that treatnent is “less expensive than incarceration in the |ong
run.” He voiced that sone legislators’ do not believe that
treatnent works, and he again requested that the public be notified
as to how user tax noney is being spent.

SCOTT WELLS testified via tel econference from Mat-Su and noted that
Al aska has one of the highest rates of alcoholismin the nation. He
exclaimed that “it should be obvious” that this abuse contributes
to many other social illnesses and expenses. He noted that he is a
contributing nenber of society and that he is a recovering

SFC- 02 (5) 04/ 18/ 02



alcoholic in treatnent, and he stressed, “that his |ife depends on
mai ntai ni ng sobriety.” He noted that treatnent costs are exorbitant
and that financial assistance fromthe State is necessary as npst
al coholics have lost their jobs and benefits and cannot afford to
enter treatnment wthout State assistance. He furthered that the
State should provide nore funding, not |ess, for treatnent
facilities. He asserted that by offering nore treatnment, the State
woul d benefit froma reduction in donestic violence, violent crinmnes
and assault, traffic violations, |ost wages and psychiatric care,
physi cal ailnents and death. He furthered that if he had had to
wait 120 days to enter treatnent, he would not have survived. He
stated that the proposed cuts would triple the waiting tine to get
into a treatnent program and the nunber of people on the waiting
list would escal ate. He stressed that treatnent works, and he
urged the Commttee to reconsider the proposed funding cuts.

CARCOL KANE, Executive Director, Al aska Association of Secondary
School Principals, testified via teleconference fromMat-Su to urge
full funding for education as it would benefit all Al askan
children. She assured the Committee that the Association supports
education standards, and she asserted that a quality education
contributes to a stronger econony.

ANN KI LKENNY testified via tel econference from Mat-Su and spoke
with concern regarding funding for education; particularly that the
State is lowering the standards required of teachers and that
teaching positions are difficult to fill. She stated that the
current hiring practices “are a disservice” to the State’s
children. She asserted that econom sts specify “that education is
as much an engine of economc growh as new jobs in mning,
tourism and oil and gas,” and that “abundant intellectual
resources play a nore inportant role in a region’s economc
devel opnent than do physical resources. She stressed that a strong
school systemwoul d benefit the State, and she urged the Conmttee
to increase the State’s school funding formula by $190 per student.

AT EASE 9:28 AM/ 9:29 AM

REBECCA KLEI NSCHM DT testified via teleconference from Ketchi kan
regardi ng the tobacco settlenment noney. She infornmed the Conmittee
that tobacco is the nunber one cause of preventative death in
Anerica. She stated that “allocating a nere 20 percent of the $25
mllion tobacco settlenment funds” to educate the public about the
adverse results of snoking tobacco is not sufficient, and she urged
the Commttee to use the funds as they were intended to be used,
which is “to treat and prevent tobacco addiction in the State.”

KEVI N MURPHY Deputy Director, Gateway Center for Human Services and

SFC- 02 (6) 04/ 18/ 02



President, Substance Abuse Directors Association for Al aska,
testified via tel econference from Ketchikan to urge the Conmttee
to reconsider the proposed 20 percent funding cut to the substance
abuse treatnment programas well as the reduction in Al cohol Safety
Action Prograns (ASAP) funding which would result in the closure of
the Juvenile ASAP program a three year pilot project that focused
on juveniles and mnor consumng. He asked the Conmttee to
maintain the FY 02 funding levels or consider the House of
Representatives FY 03 funding | evel proposal, which would require
the prograns “to tighten their belts,” but would allow them to
continue functioning.

ED ZASTROVN Representative, Ketchi kan AARP and President, Ketchikan
Seni or Center, testified via tel econference from Ketchi kan to urge
the Conmttee to reconsider the proposed reduction in the food
safety and sanitation program of the Departnent of Environnental
Conservation. He voiced that full State funding of this programis
required as any reduction in funding could |l ead to major closures
in senior food services facilities in Ketchikan. He aired that this
“woul d be unacceptable.”

Senator Leman interjected that the funding reductions being
referred to are proposed by the House of Representatives rather
than by the Senate subcommittee. He continued that, although there
is a proposed reduction in funding, the Senate subcommttee
reconmends the establishnent of receipt-supported services rather
than the use of general funds to support, and continue, the
program

KASAY KELLEY, Representative, Alaskans for Drug Free Youth
testified via tel econference from Ketchi kan and spoke regardi ng the
Al aska tobacco settlenent fund. She stated that this fund has
provi ded progranms to educate young people about the dangers of
t obacco use, and she requested the Conmittee to fully fund, at the
maxi mum | evel of *“20 percent, the Tobacco prevention, education,
and cessation program as it is intended.” She challenged the
Commttee to protect Alaska' s children fromthe tobacco industry by
provi ding this funding.

VALEREE RICE, Representative, Alaskans for Drug Free Youth,
testified via teleconference from Ketchikan to urge the Cormttee
to fully fund the tobacco prevention programat the recomended 20
percent |evel of the tobacco settlenment fund noney in order to
continue to educate youth, businesses and schools “on the harnfu

and deadly effects of tobacco.” She stated that the recommended
funding level of 20 percent would allow for “counter-marketing”
agai nst the aggressive tobacco conpani es and woul d provide a strong
foundation for the prevention for tobacco use in Ketchikan.

SFC- 02 (7) 04/ 18/ 02



PAT CHAPMAN, Enpl oyee, Ketchi kan General Hospital Tobacco Cessation
Program testified via tel econference from Ketchi kan and i nf or ned
the Commttee that the programis beginning to gain nonentum and
exhibit positive results. She stated that if funding were reduced,
t he expanding client base of the program could not be served. She
stated that 20 percent of the tobacco settlenent fund noney shoul d
be designated for the Al aska Prevention and Cessation prograns, and
she encouraged the Legislature to provide that |evel of funding.
She attested that this funding support would benefit the State
because associ ated nedi cal expenses woul d di m ni sh as the nunber of
snokers |essens; particularly as the mgjority of the Ketchikan
program s clients are fromlowinconme famlies on Medicaid.

Co-Chair Donley infornmed the Commttee that the communities of Tok
and Delta are experiencing teleconferencing difficulties and woul d
be submtting testinony via facsimle which would be incorporated
into the public testinony record

LUCY ANNE HARBOR, Director of Finance, North Sl ope Borough School
District testified via teleconference from Barrow and t hanked the
Conmittee for the increase in base student allocation funding that
the Borough received this year. She noted that the increase
assisted in offsetting sonme major cuts instituted within the
District. She al so voiced appreciation for the commtnent to fully
fund K-12 education funding in FY 03.

Ms. Harbor infornmed the Commttee that the affects of inflation
have been substantial, and she exanpled, that a nmath textbook cost
$18 in 1989; however, that sane book costs nore than $40 in 2000.
She stated that all schools face “the challenge of retooling of
instructional staff to neet the demands of the informational age”
and incorporating that into the curriculum “aligning standards to
assessnments; and retaining and recruiting good teachers.” She
asserted that inflation has reduced the buying power of the State’s
educational funds and has thereby produced budget reductions
St at ewi de. She voi ced that federal education standards nmandate that
schools hire conpetent teachers, be accountable and institute a
student nmanagenent data system however, she argued, no supportive
funding was provided to uphold the mandates. She explained the
approach the District is taking to acconplish the nandated goal s,
and informed the Commttee that the State should increase and
i nfl ati on-proof the base nunber used in the student funding fornmula
to allow schools the finances required to operate and provide
necessary services to Al askan students.

RECESS 9:41 AM/ 10: 00 AM

SFC- 02 (8) 04/ 18/ 02



TAFFY FOX, Enployee, Bering Straits Community Partnership and
Tobacco Prevention and Control, testified via tel econference from
Nome to urge the Legislature to support the Tobacco Education

Prevention and Cessation Program by allocating the full 20 percent
of the Tobacco Master Settlenent Money Funding, “as prom sed.”

SUE WH TE, Director, Famly Resource Program Maniilaq Associ ation,
testified via tel econference from Kot zebue and voi ced concern about
the proposed cuts to child protection prograns, foster care
services, and al cohol treatnent prograns. She opined that these
fundi ng reductions woul d negatively affect child/parent outreach
prograns services in the region, where, she attested, “famly
violence is ranpant,” primarily as a result of alcohol and drug
abuse. She stressed that children are “trapped” in an environnment
surrounded by al cohol and drug abuse at an early age, and as a
result they thensel ves becone al coholics. She continued that these
children are al so defensel ess agai nst “sexual predators in their
own honmes when their parent cannot protect them” She stated that
currently, the insufficient nunbers of troopers and social workers
are barely able to investigate all the reported abuses of children,
and she exclained that the proposed cuts to the budget are not the
solution to protect the children and “break the cycle of abuse.”
She communi cated the understanding that the State is facing revenue

shortfalls; therefore, she expressed the willingness to pay sal es
taxes or incone taxes to support needed services, for, she
attested, we all “have an obligation” to protect the children.

TODD FASTON, Representative, North Sl ope Borough Fire Departnent,
testified via teleconference fromBarrow and i nformed the Commttee
that the departnent serves an area of approximately 90,000 square
mles with a popul ation of 8, 000. He shared that the Departnent has
devel oped and supports volunteer fire and Enmergency Medical
Services (EMS) teans in every village in the region, and he stated
that the proposed reduction or elimnation of the State bl ock grant
through the Departnent of Health and Social Services would
significantly inpact EMS services statew de because it would
negatively affect the fire departnent’s ability to travel to
provide training to the villages. He “strongly requested that the
funding be restored to, at |east, maintenance |evels.”

JACK SMTH, Training Oficer, North Sl ope Borough Fire Departnent,
testified via teleconference from Barrow to voice that the fire
departnment’s ability to provide training, equipnent, accreditation,
and ot her assistance to the fire and EMS volunteers in the eight
villages in the region woul d be negatively affected by the proposed
budget cuts. He stated that current funding is received fromtwo
“smal|” sources; the EMS State block grant and the State Fire
Marshal | funding. He noted that the EMS bl ock grant allowed the

SFC- 02 (9) 04/ 18/ 02



departnent to provide, in FY 02, 85 courses including first aid
training, CPR training, Energency Medical Technicians (EM)
training, and fire fighting training. He stated that further budget
reductions would inpact the services provided to the communities
and the ability to re-certify EMIs. He infornmed the Commttee that
| ocal budget cuts have al so been experienced, and to conpensate for
that funding reduction, the fire departnent has fornmed alliances
with entities such as the local conmunity college and borough
governnents to partner together to try and neet basic training
needs. He asserted that any additional State cuts would result “in
a nore serious inpact.”

GARY LEWS, Vice Mayor, Wangell, testified via tel econference from
Wangell and asserted that “any reduction in rmunicipal capita

grant sharing” would “have a huge inpact on the community.” He
stressed that a State sales tax would result in Wangell being the
hi ghest sal es taxed community in the State at ten percent, which he
decl ared, “would be devastating to the community.” He stated that

W angel | annual |y generat es approxi nately $250, 000 per one percent

of its current sales tax, and, he asserted, that were a State tax
to be established, the City mght be required to offset the total

tax level by reducing the current City tax by three percent. He
clarified that the resulting | oss of $750,000 to the Gty’'s revenue
woul d prohibit the community’'s ability to maintain its current

| evel of City operations.

SFC 02 # 66, Side B 10:08 AM

BRUCE HARDI NG Mayor , Cty of W angel | , testified via
tel econference from Wangell to address the proposed cuts to the
Marine H ghway System (MHS) and the affect it would have on
comunities in Southeast Al aska as well as those in the Railbelt
area. He attested that now that he is a Wangell resident rather
than a resident of the Mat-Su area, he understands the |evel of
i npact that a reduction in ferry service would have in Sout heast;
particularly in the tourismarena, which he attested, would be felt
on a statewi de basis. He urged the Conmttee to fund the MHS at
sufficient |evels.

M. Harding additionally addressed the “serious inpact” that the
proposed MAIS funding reductions would incur on the State’'s
fisheries which use the ferry systemto ship large quantities of
fish. He expressed that, “tying up boats is about the only way to
save noney.”

Senator A son informed the Commttee that there would be a delay in

SFC- 02 (10) 04/ 18/ 02



the public testinmony from the villages of Nonme, Kotzebue, and
Barrow as the residents of the area were incorrectly notified, on
the local |evel, about the scheduled tine for public testinony.

| NEZ WEBB, Student, University of Al aska Fairbanks, testified via
tel econference from None to urge the Coormittee to fund President
Mark Ham lton’s proposed budget request for the University of
Alaska as it is inmportant that rural canpuses remain open;
particularly the distance delivery prograns. She acknow edged the
nuner ous budget chal l enges presented to the Legislature; however,
she stressed the benefits that an education provides.

DI ANE SCHAEFFER, testified via teleconference from None and
inforned the Commttee that she is the first nmenber of her famly
to go to college and that she is continuing to pursue her degree.
She urged the Conmittee to continue funding education prograns.

CHARLES PULLOCK, University of Al aska Fairbanks Northwest canpus,
testified via tel econference from None in support of the student
services that the University provides. He stated that the
Uni versity benefits the community and the region in addition to the
students. He spoke of a partnership between the University and the
United States National Park Service through which they jointly
present sem nars such as one that he is currently attending titled
“Cul ture, Museum and Tourism Devel opnent.” He attested that these
types of student services are a great benefit, and he urged
conti nued fundi ng support for education.

TREVOR COLBY, Vice President, Comrunity Health Services, Norton
Sound Regional Hospital (NSRH) testified via teleconference from
None regardi ng proposed budget cuts to small, regional clinics. He
stated that the elimnated funding supports the salaries of four
Physi ci an Assistants (PAs) who work in conjunction with health aids
in small clinics in Unal akl eet, Shishmaref, Ganbell, and Stebbi ns.
He explained that while approximately twenty nmedivacs, costing
approxi mately $10,000 each, occur each nonth in the region; he
asserted that the nedical know edge of the PAs is helpful in
preventing approxi mately twenty unnecessary nedi vacs each year for
total annual savings of $200,000. He clarified that approxi mately
$60, 000 of the $90,000 being elinmnated equates to one full PA
position, and he stressed that renoval of this position would
adversely affect nedical services in a conmunity as well as
i ncrease expenses such as the unnecessary nedi vacs.

ROSEMARY DEGVAN, Director, Village Health Service, Norton Sound
Regi onal Hospital testified via tel econference from Nonme that the
proposed renoval of one PA position fromthe budget would harmthe
health care of a community, renpve nedical assistance and “nora

SFC- 02 (11) 04/ 18/ 02



support” to nurse’'s aids, limt health education options, and
| essen the integration of other services in the community. She
stated that it would negatively affect the perception of community
health care delivery in the villages and rai se expenses incurred by
unnecessary nedivacs. She urged the Commttee to continue to
provi de funding for PA salaries.

Co-Chair Kelly noved to adopt “the Senate CS for House Bill Nunber
403 Version ‘R as the working docunent for the operating budget.”

Senat or Hof fman commented that while “he does not agree with the
docunent at this tine,” he would not object to the notion.

There being no objection, SCS for CS HB 403(FIN), 22-LS1295\R was
ADOPTED as a working draft.

Co-Chair Kelly noved to adopt “Version ‘J of House Bill 404.”
Senat or Hof fman restated his previous conment.

Co-Chair Kelly objected to clarify |anguage of the original bil
verses |language in the commttee substitute.

Co-Chair Kelly renoved his objection.

There being no further objection, SCS for CS HB 404(FIN), 22-
LS1483\J was ADOPTED as a working draft.

RECESS 10: 21 AM/ 10:27 AM

There being no further public testinony at this time from the
schedul ed teleconferencing sites, Co-Chair Donley called for a
recess.

RECESS 10: 31 AM/ 4:04 PM

[ Note: The remainder of Side B, Tape 66 is blank; however, the
testinony resunes on Side A Tape 67. No portion of the neeting is
unr ecor ded. ]

SFC 02 # 67, Side A 04:04 PM

JENNY CAROL testified offnet fromFort Yukon to urge the Conmttee
to provide full funding for the University of Alaska as the
University is essential to the growth of the State. She stated that
education is particularly inmportant in rural A aska as it provides
individuals with the education and training required to be

SFC- 02 (12) 04/ 18/ 02



successful .

ERA EKTU [nane and title indiscernible] testified via
tel econference from Fort Yukon to urge the Commttee to support
funding for the University of Al aska, especially funding that
supports rural prograns that benefit people in the region.

EVELYN JAMES testified offnet fromFort Yukon to urge full funding
for the University of Al aska’ s budget, especially rural education
opportunities that allow people to remain in their conmunities
whi | e taking cl asses.

[ Nane not provided], Student, Al eutian Canpus of the University of
Al aska testified via teleconference from Fort Yukon to urge ful
funding for the University. She noted that her participation in
tel econferenced courses has allowed her to become certified and
obtain enploynent in the Early Chil dhood field. She stressed that,
wi thout these rural 1ong-distance educational opportunities,
current residents and future generations mght not be able to
continue their education because relocating to other areas in the
State is not an option.

GARY CRANDALL, Representative, Lower Yukon School District,
testified froman offnet site to informthe Conmttee that current
regulations require Peer |Instructional A ds to acquire their
Associ ate’s Degree or 60 hours of post-secondary instruction in
order to be hired as a Peer Instructor in the district’s
cl assroons. He stated that w thout adequate funding for the rural
Uni versities, the required classes would not be available to these
i ndividuals; and furthernore, he stated these courses al so provide
t he education necessary for these individuals to becone certified
teachers. He expressed that the individuals taking these courses
are the “anchors” in the community as they have grown up in the
region and would remain there to teach in the schools, as opposed
to the normal high turnover that has been experienced with teachers
who are not native to the area.

M. Crandall additionally urged the Committee to continue funding
the Quality Schools Learning Opportunities Fund that the District
has used to provide after school tutorials for at-risk children

ANDY DURNY testified offnet from Nulato and spoke to proposed
budget “cuts that would nost negatively” affect rural Al aska
particularly proposed reductions in the Village Public Safety
Oficers (VPSO and troopers prograns. He divulged that villages
could not provide the required funds to support these prograns, and
he stressed that nore noney would be saved by funding these
prograns than would be saved by reducing them He additionally

SFC- 02 (13) 04/ 18/ 02



protested proposed cuts to the University' s Distance Delivery
education program as the benefits to the receiving communities are
important. He voiced support for a State incone tax, school tax or
alimt on the Permanent Fund Di vi dend checks in order to provide
t he noney necessary to continue needed prograns in rural Al aska.

Co- Chair Donley asked M. Durny how rural comunities m ght acquire
the ability “to self-police.”

M. Durny responded that “the huge novenent away from the
traditional subsistence-based-lifestyle to a cash econony” within
the past 30 years has forced the need for State funding assi stance
to address the problens that have devel oped wth these changes,
particularly problens involving al cohol and drug abuse. He stated
that local funding is not available to support enforcenent as
mandat ed by State | aw; however, he stressed that sone |evel of |aw
enforcenent and public safety is required. He stated that unti
ot her options are inplenented, the VPSO programis the best current
alternative.

PAULA HARRI S testified offnet fromMGath to state that any cuts
in conmmunity health, education, or safety would be harnful to rura
Al aska. She stated that cuts to the Power Cost Equalization (PCE)
program and public radio would also be felt. She stressed that
limting health <clinic, VPSO and troopers prograns would
negatively affect the villages, as unlike larger conmunities,
oftentimes, there is only one VPSO officer and no other resource
avai |l able. She urged the Conmttee to consider the negative results
of these cuts on rural comunities. She informed the Commttee that
sanme communities, like McGath, have limted |ocal funding that
makes it difficult to provide for all the needs of the community.

JERRI NAGARWK testified offnet fromEI imto state that were it not
for the University’'s distance | earning program she would not have
been able to further her education and becone a teacher. She shared
the opportunities that acquisition of an education has provi ded her
and her three children. She urged the Commttee to fully fund the
Uni versity as she stated that cuts to the University woul d prevent
others fromreceiving this opportunity.

JIMW HURLEY testified offnet from Ekwok to note that the
Uni versity of Alaska funding is “very inportant to the Bristol Bay
area.” He stated that since the decline in the fishing industry,
the University has provided rural Al askans other opportunities from
which to make a living. He communi cated that the VPSO programis
very inportant to rural areas, and he shared the inportance of
continuing to fund VPSO training opportunities due to the fact that
officers are not allowed to carry firearns. He noted that funding

SFC- 02 (14) 04/ 18/ 02



for health and social service prograns is also essential to rural
areas, especially to address the problem of al cohol. He stressed
that funded progranms provide jobs for people in rural A aska, which
assists in addressing the al cohol problem as having a job deters
peopl e from devel opi ng vi ces.

BART LABOND, President, Board of Education, Fairbanks North Star
Bor ough School District testified in Juneau and |ikened the fl at
fundi ng being considered for K12 education as being a cut to school
budgets due to inflation. He stated that the Fairbanks’ schoo
district welcones State initiatives such as the State H gh School
Qualifying Exit Examthat chall enges the educational systemto neet
the goals established for the State; however, he remarked that the
proposed education budget is like “being put on a long-termdiet to
gain weight.” He stated that schools nust have nore funding to
address the State’s mandate for increased student performance
|l evel s. He stated that the District used the increased funds
provided in the FY 02 budget to enhance its summer school
operations and provide additional elenentary school reading
enhancenment prograns. He revealed that noney is earnarked to
address m ddl e school and high school math enhancenent prograns
whi ch, he attested, is an area that needs assistance Statew de. He
stressed that wthout sufficient funding, “schools mght go
backwards, as there is no such thing as status quo.” He stressed
that “the budget is needs-based,” and support nust be denonstrated
on the local and State |evel.

JIM HOLT, Superintendent, Fairbanks North Star Borough School
District, testified in Juneau and acknow edged the Legislature’ s FY
02 education funding efforts. He testified that the Fairbanks’
School District’s $100,000,000 budget is affected by annual
inflation rates of one to three percent which results in the need
of an additional one to three mllion dollar increase being
budget ed each year just to nmaintain status quo, w thout addressing
| abor adj ustnent increases. He stated that flat funding is the sane
as a budget decrease due to inflation, and he stated that to reach
the nmandated State education benchmarks, the District nust be
appropriately funded.

Senator Leman asked the witness to clarify whether the funded
specified for inflation-proofing the District’s budget allows for
sal ary scal e i ncreases.

M. Holt responded that 84 percent of the District’s budget
addresses sal ari es and enpl oyee benefits, and he explained that the
District is currently in teacher salary negotiations. He clarified
that the one to three percent increase aforenentioned addresses
inflation proofing requirenents for the contract that is currently

SFC- 02 (15) 04/ 18/ 02



in place.

Senator W/ ken voiced appreciation, on behalf of the Fairbanks
| egi sl ative delegation, for M. Holt’'s years of service to the
education conmunity.

ROGER JENKINS testified offnet from N kolai to thank the
Legi slature for the Conmunity Capital Matching G ant programthat
has been used to fund the community’s generator shed inprovenents.
He infornmed the Conmittee that any reduction in the kilowatt
formula in the Power Cost Equalization (PCE) program would be
detrinmental to rural residents overall. He exanpled sonme of the
community’s residential kilowatt usage.

WLLI AM SOLOVAN testified offnet from Kaltag that budget cuts woul d
harm rural conmmunities and that his forenbst concern is a proposed
kil owatt fornula reduction in the PCE program He additionally
stated that budget cuts to Head Start prograns would be harnful to
conmuni ties.

ELI ZABETH WOODS testified of fnet from Manl ey Hot Springs to address
proposed road mnai nt enance budget reductions for the Elliot H ghway
that provides access to Manley Hot Springs. She stated that the
option of flying to the area is limted and often weather
dependant. She stated that road nmaintenance cuts would be harnfu

to the community, especially with the recent devel opnent of w nter
tourism She voiced support of a State incone tax or gas tax to
assist the State’s fiscal needs.

FRANK KELTY, Natural Resource Analyst, Gty of Unal aska, testified
of fnet from Unal aska to urge the Commttee to investigate nethods
to raise revenues for the State rather than continuing to reduce
services. He stated that the community of Unal aska “is not | ooking
for handouts” and has contributed to its road, prison and school
district well-being. He continued that while the conmmunity
contributes in nmany ways, there are, he attested, things that it
could not do such provide funding to manage the comerci al
fisheries in the Bering Sea area. He stated that fishing |icensing
and |l anding fees contribute to this cause, and he voi ced support
for continuing State, rather than federal managenent, of conmerci al
fisheries. He urged the Conmttee to continue its fisheries funding
to enable the State’'s experienced biologists and other
professionals to work to address the challenges facing the State’s
fisheries as this resource is critical to conmmunities in the area.

SAM LI GHTWOOD, Farner, Kenney Lake, testified offnet from

Gennallen to urge the Commttee to not reduce funding to the
Di vision of Probation and Corrections, Department of Corrections

SFC- 02 (16) 04/ 18/ 02



budget ; specifically the funding support of the Pal ner
sl aught erhouse operation. He stated that this small budget item
i npacts agriculture operations throughout the State and inpacts the
fundi ng operations of other Departnent of Corrections divisions. He
additionally voiced support for a State business tax.

SHERYLE CHARLIE testified offnet fromMnto to voice opposition to
road mai nt enance fundi ng reductions, as, she alerted the Comm ttee,
the road systemis critical for the community of Mnto to receive
suppl ies, groceries and nedical care. She stated that air travel is
not reliable due to weather conditions. She additionally voiced
opposition to any proposed cuts to the VPSO program and nedica
ai de positions as the community relies heavily on their services,
and she considers them conmunity assets.

AL UNCK testified offnet from Kotlik and thanked the Legislature
for the Community Capital Matching G ant Programthat the comunity
has used to upgrade such things as its jail. He voiced opposition
to any funding reductions in the VPSO or State Trooper prograns. He
voi ced support for allowi ng VPSO officers to carry guns, as well as
appreciation for the comunity’ s Head Start program

LAWRENCE BRENDEMAN, Tanana Chiefs, testified offnet from Manl ey Hot
Springs to voice opposition to the proposed Departnment of
Transportation and Public Facilities budget cuts. He stated that
transportation systemin the State is diverse and requires a | ot of
noney; however, he asserted, continuing maintenance is |ess
expensive than reconstructing a neglected road system He voiced
support for a State inconme tax as it would be the nost equitable
nmet hod of addressing the State’s needs and woul d all ow t he peopl e
who earn noney in the State to support State services. He stated
that elimnating road maintenance to villages would be very
harnful , as | ocal econom es woul d be negatively affected. He opi ned
that road closures would be very irresponsi bl e.

CRYSTAL W LSON, Student, College of Rural Al aska Interior Regions
Canpus, Tok Center, testified offnet fromTok to urge full funding
for the University as it allows people like herself to further
their education wthout being required to nove to a |arger
comunity. She stated that the education she has received has
enabl ed her to obtain an adm nistrative position that has enabl ed
her to provide for her famly.

SFC 02 # 67, Side B 04:51 PM

Ms. WIlson stated that nmany productive citizens of the area have

SFC- 02 (17) 04/ 18/ 02



benefited fromthe opportunity to earn a university education. She
stated that the community has additionally benefited from the
ability to hire local Natives who have becone teachers through the
Uni versity program She stated that the University funding is vital
to the State.

LYNN CULBERTSON, Teacher, testified offnet from Mento to voice
support for continued road nmai ntenance to ensure nedi cal and dental
services for the community' s residents, especially for conunity
el ders. She stated that plane service is limted and weather
dependent. She stated that the cost of receiving school supplies
“woul d skyrocket,” and that mil service would be restricted

school extracurricular activities would be elimnated, trips out of
town would require a mininmumof three days as snmall plane service
is limted to Mondays, Wdnesdays, and Fridays. She furthered that
famly trips would dimnish, and the cost of Iliving would
dramatically increase; thereby forcing famlies to nove el sewhere.
She concluded that due to the resulting isolation, drug and al cohol
abuse woul d increase, and asserted that all aspects of life would
be negatively affected, and if the road were not naintained, the
village “would die.”

G_LENN MARUDE testified offnet fromNorthway to urge full funding of
the Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities budget
rather than targeting the Departnent for budget cuts.

PATTY BROMW, M ddl e School Science Teacher, testified offnet from
Hai nes to urge nore funding for schools. She noted that the decline
in the Haines student enrollnent this year has adversely affected
the community. She attributed the enrollnment decline to be
“partially due to a wobbly econony;” however, she urged the
Conmttee to increase the school funding fornula level per child to
assure that Al aska's students could be educated to be good citizens
and be able to have the educational background required to obtain
good jobs and contribute to the econony. She stated that currently
Hai nes could |loose five teachers at the tinme when the State is
mandating that a certain |evel of education be acquired.

Bl LL BEYORK, Teacher, Fairbanks North Star Borough School District
infornmed the Committee of his involvenent for the past five years
with a Fairbanks at-risk student program consisting of 110
students, four teachers, and a secretary. He stated that any budget
cuts to the District would place this programin jeopardy, and he
urged the Commttee to rank K12 school funding as a high priority.
He stated that the program s kids would not be served by the public
school system if the school funding for Fairbanks were not
i ncreased. He stressed that the investnent in school funding would
be noney well spent.

SFC- 02 (18) 04/ 18/ 02



CHRI STI NE ROBERTS testified offnet from Tanana to voi ce support for
funding for the Head Start program and the PCE program She
additionally urged that no reductions be made to the State’s road
mai nt enance budget.

RECESS 5:03 PM/ 5:15 PM

ART BUSWELL testified via tel econference from Fairbanks to urge the
Committee to fully fund the University’ s budget request to enable
the University to offer prograns needed to fill in-State jobs in
t he nedi cal, engineering, health, and psychology fields. He stated
that investing in the University now would support the future of
the State and woul d continue the progress that has been nmade in the
| ast few years.

ROYCE CHAPMAN, Menber, Fairbanks North Star Borough School Board,
testified via tel econference from Fairbanks that flat funding from
the State is not acceptable when, at the sane tine, the State is
mandati ng that schools nust neet higher standards. He continued
that flat funding would be the same as a budget reduction and woul d
result in math and other critical prograns being reduced or
el i m nat ed.

JAMES PARRI SH, General Counsel, University of Al aska, testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks in support of full funding of the
University as recent funding increases have provided for an
i nproved educational experience. He asserted that the University is
using its general funds “wsely” and is providing training and
skills that Al askans need to acquire Al askan jobs in addition to
retaining youth in the State; thereby, reducing the State’'s “brain
drain.” He reiterated that the University has kept “its prom ses”
regarding the intent of the increased funding, and he reiterated
that the University requires the proper level of inflation proofing
to continue its m ssion.

M KE DONALDSON testified via teleconference from Fairbanks in
support of a fiscal plan rather than programcuts. He stated that
the current proposed operating budget would be a disservice to the
nost di sadvantaged citizens of the State.

Rl CHARD WRI GHT, Enpl oyee, Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities testified via tel econference from Fairbanks to ask the
Commi ttee how the Department’s enpl oyees woul d be expected “to do
nore with |ess;” specifically how fewer enpl oyees would be able to
mai ntain the sane anmobunt of lane mles. He urged the Conmttee to
all ot the necessary funding to nmaintain and nanage the road system
He stated that the Retirenent Incentive Program (Rl P) should be

SFC- 02 (19) 04/ 18/ 02



revised in order to encourage nore enployees to retire in order to
| ower overall enpl oyee expenses.

CARTER CRAWFORD testified via tel econference from Fairbanks and
encouraged the Commttee to maintain the State’'s block grants to
entities as, he attested, these prograns provide nore services at a
25 percent less cost than simlar State nmanaged prograns;
particularly in the legal, penal and health fields. He continued
that “the University is the nost powerful economc engine in the
State,” as it supplies jobs, attracts outside revenue, supports
comuni ty businesses, creates an educated work force, “provides
vital communication links to rural comunities,” and provides
cultural events throughout the State. He supported use of the
Permanent Fund, rather than a State tax, as “an appropriate”
revenue source for the State as “it is not our noney, it is neant”
to support the State.

RI CHARD HARNCS testified via teleconference from Fairbanks to
support funding for road nmai ntenance in Norton Region of the State.
He stated, “that further cuts in road maintenance would be a
di saster and would cost the State nore noney in the long run.”

JAMES DART, Operator, Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities, testified via teleconference from Fairbanks in support
of funding for road mai ntenance. He detailed the needs of the area
and how it would be “grossly unfair” to reduce the |evel of
servi ce.

JERI LANIER testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks to decl are
that the proposed cuts to the State’s Mental Health Budget woul d
“set the program backward.” She stated that as a result of the
proposed reductions, adults would receive treatnment through the
Department of Corrections, which is nore expensive and could
violate federal |aw that denmands that people be treated rather than
“held for long periods of tine.” She continued that many children
woul d be treated through the DFYS by use of expensive out-of-State
progranms, and she asserted that nore extensive efforts should be
undertaken to provide nore opportunities for in-State treatnent.
She expressed that program quality would be inpacted by the
proposed budget reductions. She avowed that the State should “be
fiscally responsible and that that could be acconplished by
treating people in their own conmunity in the |least restrictive
manner possi ble, and keeping kids at hone with their famlies.”

DAVID LEONE testified via tel econference from Fairbanks to voice
that the State’s Safe Communities Revenue Sharing budget, and in
particular, the State’s Community Matching Block Gants, should
i nclude inflation-proofing nmeasures. He urged full funding for the

SFC- 02 (20) 04/ 18/ 02



Uni versity systemto ensure econom c devel opnent in the State, and
he encouraged the Conmttee “to do whatever it can to inflation-
proof” the school foundation funding fornula for Ki2.

JUDY DCELTS, Principal, Fort Wiinwight Elenentary School,
testified via tel econference from Fairbanks to urge the Conmttee
to increase education funding as, she stressed, children are
“greatly inpacted” by funding cuts. She shared that children of
mlitary famlies nove frequently, have no extended famly, and she
stated that a standard curriculum should be offered as these
children nove from one school environnment to another. She stated
that while teachers work hard to neet State standards; snaller
class sizes would assist the effort. She noted that the mlitary
school averages a 40 percent student turnover during a school year.

SAMJEL FARI'S, Student, testified via teleconference from Fairbanks
to announce that Al aska should levy a Statew de education tax to
pronot e econom ¢ growt h and support the education system

Senat or Austerman observed that testifiers have offered numerous
fundi ng source ideas to acquire the funds needed to support State
prograns. He stated that he val ues the suggestions and deens them
wor t hy of consi deration.

EVE LAMBERT, Fairbanks North Star Borough School District testified
via teleconference from Fairbanks in opposition to the proposed
budget cuts to the infant |earning program She stated that this
“wonderful service” assists in identifying children at an early age
who mght require special care to assure they are successful
i ndi vi dual s.

R KI SIPE, Menber, Fairbanks North Star Borough Social Services
Comm ssion and Enployee, Fairbanks North Star Borough School
District, testified via teleconference from Fai rbanks to urge the
Commttee to consider “that education funding is essential” to the
State’s future. She attested that Permanent Fund revenue shoul d be
tapped to provide for necessary education funding.

DENI SE DANI ELLO, Executive Director, North Star Council on Aging,
testified via teleconference from Fairbanks in support of full
funding for the comunity matching grant program She inforned the
Commttee that this grant provides critical funding for the
Fai r banks’ Meal s-on-Weel s senior services programthat saves the
State a lot of nobney by allowing people to remain in their own
hones rather than in hospitals or assisted living facilities. She
detailed the benefits provided to the conmmunity’ s seniors by the
Meal s on Weels program and she stressed that the need for
adequat e and expandi ng funding of the grant programis critical to

SFC- 02 (21) 04/ 18/ 02



communi ti es.

RUTHAMAE KARR, Enployee, Interior Neighborhood Health dinic,
testified via teleconference from Fairbanks and thanked the
Legi slature for establishing the Tobacco Cessation and Educati on
Fund from which the clinic received a grant. She urged the
Committee to use the recomended 20 percent of the $25 mllion
Mastery Tobacco Settlenment noney for education and prevention
programnms. She stated that for every pack of cigarettes bought by
youth, the State has to spend double “that anmount for health care
in the long run.”

KRYSTAL HUWE, Enpl oyee, University of Al aska Fairbanks, testified
via teleconference from Fairbanks to urge the continuance of
funding for tobacco education and prevention prograns. She stated
that continuing education is required to conbat the influence of
yout h peer pressure.

TINA KOCSIS, Director, Nanana Valley Hospice, testified via
tel econference from Fai rbanks, and urged the Commttee to increase
funding for the Departnent of Health and Social Services conmunity
mat ching grant prograns. She noted that while 90-percent of the
work performed by the Nanana Valley Hospice is conducted by
vol unteers, the matching grant funding the organization receives
supports prograns that are offered. She continued that w thout
prograns such as Hospice, individuals who have ill |oved ones woul d
be required to leave their jobs to provide care for them She
continued that this would result in increased unenploynent,
i ncreased applications for public assistance, and an increased need
for Medicaid. She stated that studies indicate that people who have
experienced a | oss due to death incur increased al cohol and drug
abuse, divorce, child abuse, illness, and suicide. She stated that
these issues would further inpact the State by increasing demands
on social services. She reiterated that proper funding for social
services would assist in negating these concerns, and she voiced
that the State “has a responsibility to | ook after children, the
elderly, the termnally ill, and those who are alone or afraid.”

SHARON BULLOCK, dinical D rector, Fairbanks Community Mental
Health Center testified via tel econference from Fairbanks to urge
funding for the Center’s children prograns. She spoke of the growth
t he program has experienced due to the demand for assistance and
that the programcurrently has a waiting list of 61 children aged
two to seventeen. She stated that these children suffer from such
t hi ngs as depression, sexual, physical and enotional abuse, and
fetal alcohol syndrome. She stressed that assisting “severely
enotional ly disturbed children” prevents further repercussions on
society as the children grow up. She urged the Commttee to provide

SFC- 02 (22) 04/ 18/ 02



assistance to this grow ng situation.

CYNTHI A HENRY, Menber, Fairbanks North Star Borough Assenbly,
testified via tel econference from Fairbanks to voi ce appreciation
for the Legislature’s continuing support for nunicipal revenue
sharing. She noted that the Borough is concerned about the K12
school formula funding for education and urged the Conmttee to
continue to increase the funding | evels as, she attested, progress
has been nade and i ncreased fundi ng woul d continue that trend.

DON THI BEDEAU, Board Menber, Tanana Valley Hospice testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks to urge continuing or increased
support of the Departnent of Health and Social Services comunity
mat ching grants funding. He detailed the services that Hospice
provides and the continuing need to expand those services. He
stated that increased funding is required to allow Hospice and
ot her local non-profit agencies to provide assistance prograns.

STEVE SWEET, Representative, Public Enployees Local 71 testified
via tel econference from Fairbanks that proposed operating budget
cuts “are uncivilized and atrocious.” He stated that the proposed
el imnation of Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities
jobs would result in such things as people |losing their hones and
an increase in crinme. He stated that because other job
opportunities are limted; unenploynent clains would increase. He
stated that efforts to save noney by contracting out such things as
the Dalton H ghway road maintenance have not been successful as
contractors state that they would require nore funding than it
currently costs the State to undertake those responsibilities.

ANNETTE FRI EBURGER testified via tel econference from Fairbanks t hat
she is concerned about the proposed budget because it would
adversely inpact children and their famlies. She stressed that not
everyone is lucky enough to be born into a striving environment and
that no one asks to have a disability, get cancer, to be poor, or
to becone an alcoholic. She stressed, “that addiction is like a
di sease and should be treated” as such. She stated that any
reduction in drug and al cohol treatnent program “fundi ng woul d cost
the State much nore in the long run” as the State cuts would incur
a loss of federal match noney and create a backl og of individuals
requiring treatnent.

MARGARET WLSON testified via tel econference from Fairbanks that
proposed budget reductions “would force the closure of the 12-bed
residential treatnent programat Ad Mtchell Recovery Canp” which
is the State’s only famly treatnent center. She stated that the
program serves up to 150 clients annually and enploys six
physi ci ans and ot her staffers. She commented that, in addition to

SFC- 02 (23) 04/ 18/ 02



treating individuals with drug and al cohol addiction, the Center
prints and distributes approximately 10,500 nonthly substance abuse
prevention newsletters to schools in the State.

ANN HOPPER, Director, Fairbanks Native Association Fam |y Focus
Programtestified via tel econference from Fai rbanks and expl ai ned
that this 24-hour a day program provi des assistance to honel ess and
run-a-way youth, aged ten to seventeen, as well as famly
medi ati on. She stated that the Center receives grant funding from
the Division of Famly & Youth Services and that the proposed
twenty percent cut to these grants would negatively affect this
crisis intervention program and nunerous other social service
prograns in the comunity. She stressed that the State “needs
heal thy functioning prograns” to provide care, support, and
referral services.

ELAI NE LANDON, Tanana Chi efs Council, Incorporated (TCC), testified
via tel econference from Fairbanks, to informthe Commttee that the
Council operates a social service programw th a $550, 000 annual
budget in MG ath, a community consisting of 401 people. She stated
that currently the program receives State grants anounting to
$27,000; however, proposed cuts would |ower that Assistance to
Community Health grant anount to $9,000. She asserted that the
current funding |evel does not provide adequate and basic health
care for the community’'s residents, and “that the proposed fundi ng
barely qualifies as a token of State support for this very rural
health care facility.”

CARLA GOLDI ZEN, Parent and Menber, Parent Teacher Association
testified via teleconference from Fairbanks that she wants ot her
children to have the sanme educati onal advantages and opportunities
that her children have had in the Fairbanks public school system
She urged the Commttee to fully fund, rather than flat fund
educat i on.

TABER REHBAUM Arctic Alliance, testified via tel econference from
Fai rbanks that she is “grateful” that the Conmmttee is not
proposi ng unall ocated cuts to the departnents nor that it includes
a reduction in the level of DFYS social workers. She voiced
di sappoi nt nent; however, that subsidized foster care and adopti on
prograns have been targeted for budget reductions. She stated that
children in State custody require “all the support” that can be
suppl i ed. She characterized proposed reductions in substance abuse
treatment programs as “unconscionable and irresponsible.” She
stressed that this “is the nost invasive problenf the State faces
as it affects law enforcenent, the Departnment of Corrections,
incurs famly problens and child abuse, and nedical care expenses.
She stated that if the Legislature is concerned about whether

SFC- 02 (24) 04/ 18/ 02



funding these prograns is warranted, then she suggested, “that
requirenents could be built” into the program She urged “the
Committee to please rethink this one.”

SFC 02 # 68, Side A 05:55 PM

Ms. Rehbaum t hanked Conmittee nmenbers who support full funding of
the Departnent of Health and Social Services Human Services
Community Matching block grant. She stated that the State has fl at
funded these grants for years; however, she attested the demands on
the community prograns “has increased expediently.” She stated that
the block grants in Fairbanks are awarded to local non-profit
organi zati ons that concentrate on prevention and nust denonstrate
positive outconmes fromtheir efforts. She attested “that this is a
wonder ful exanpl e of results-based funding,” and she avowed, “that
to cut this efficient, effective use of State and local funding is
again irresponsible, and if anything, the funding for these grants
should be increased.” She urged the Conmittee “to address the
State’s fiscal problemw th a fiscal plan not band aid cuts.”

Senator G een asked for M. Rehbaum to expand on her coments
regardi ng subsi di zed adoption and foster care funding, as Senator
Green attested that the Senate budget version proposal for these
prograns differs fromthe w tness’ testinony.

Ms. Rehbaumreplied that the information she has is not current and
that some of the funding |evels mght have been updated. She
continued that her information indicates that funding for these
prograns has been reduced.

Senator Green corrected the information by pointing out that the
Senat e Purchase Services Budget Request Unit (BRU) specifies there
to be $10 mllion nore funding allotted than in the FY 02 budget,
and approximately $4.5 nmillion nore than the | evel proposed in the
House of Representatives budget.

Ms. Rahbaum commented that her information suggests a $600, 000
reduction is proposed; however, she appreciates the update.

Senat or W1l ken stated that an updated budget sheet woul d be faxed
to the Fairbanks LI O office.

BRENDA HOLDEN testified via teleconference from Fairbanks and
infornmed the Commttee that she chaired a recent Fairbanks Health
and Soci al Service Comm ssion grant review process during which 18
grant funding proposals were reviewed and scored. She expressed

SFC- 02 (25) 04/ 18/ 02



that the agencies submtting the requests provide essential
comunity services such as hunger, safety and housi ng needs. She
poi nted out that the agencies requesting grant fundi ng assi stance
from the Departnent of Health and Social Services are also
under goi ng budget reductions from other sources, which creates “a
ripple affect on the services provided.” She stated that the denmand
for services is increasing rather than decreasing, and that “the
probl ens of hunger, safety and housing will not go away.”

Ms. Hol den stressed that the agencies receiving comunity matching
bl ock grants |everage those funds to acquire other funding in
excess of twelve times the allotted grant anount. She stressed that
the community block grant funding should be increased rather than
reduced.

RI CHARD KECK testified via tel econference from Fairbanks to urge
the Legislature to invest in children, “the nost inportant
investnment in the State.” He urged full funding for K12 education
and University of Alaska. He asserted that, “this is the only way
the state woul d prosper.”

CHERYL KEEPERS testified via teleconference from Fairbanks and
appl auded the efforts being undertaken for the devel opnent of a
| ong-range State fiscal plan; however, she voiced concern regarding
proposed reductions in State prograns that woul d negatively affect
children. She noted that research indicates that early chil dhood
environments are a significant factor in how “a child would grow,
their success in school, and their ultimte productivity as adult
citizens.” She stated that investing in such things as Head Start,
child protection, and infant |earning prograns would “pay off in
the long run and that cutting back on these prograns now woul d
i ncur nore expenses in the years ahead “in social and nonetary
nmeasures.”

Ms. Keepers additionally urged funding for alcohol and substance
abuse prograns. She stated that nore, rather than fewer, treatnent
options are needed. She aired that a reduction in fundi ng now woul d
create additional expenses |ater. She thanked the Conmmttee for
their support of community matching grants, which she attested is
very valuable in the community as the funds are used to | everage
additional dollars to support the conmmunity prograns.

NIl CK STAYROOK, Enployee, Fairbanks North Star Borough School
District testified via teleconference from Fairbanks that he has
worked on the developnent of the State education standards
gui delines, and he declared that education in the State has
inproved as a result of the standards. He indicated that
Legislative support has enabled schools to inprove their

SFC- 02 (26) 04/ 18/ 02



curriculunms, and he urged the Commttee to increase funding for the
State school foundation formula funding program to further the
noment um

M. Stayrook additionally urged the Commttee to support the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent Early Devel opnment
Program which conducts the State’'s student assessnents. He voiced
support of a limt being placed on the Pernmanent Fund Dividend
checks as a neans of financing school prograns.

LI NDA ROBERTSON, Enpl oyee, Speci al Education Departnent, Fairbanks
North Star Borough School District testified via tel econference
from Fai rbanks to voice opposition to any funding reduction to the
State’s Infant Learning Program She shared her persona
experiences involving the inportance of intervention at an early
age, and she urged the Commttee to increase programfunding for it
woul d benefit the State over tine.

DON TRIPLEHORN, Ceologist, testified via teleconference from
Fai rbanks to voi ce support for public radio funding. He stated that
the prograns provided by public radio are essential to many
people’s quality of life.

VANESSA SPENCER, Student, University of Al aska Fairbanks, urged the
Commttee to fully fund the University. She shared that university
graduates “are less likely to spend tine in prison, are less likely
to be on welfare, and nake, on average, tw ce as nuch as those
people without a degree.” She stressed that investing in the
University woul d save the State noney in the |long run. She shared
that a recent report identified Al aska as one of five states where
a public educational college education is affordable for |owincone
i ndividuals, and she stated that flat funding mght result in
tuition increases that wuld deny sone Alaskans from the
opportunity of a university education. She stated that disallow ng
i ndi vidual s a chance of an advanced education could result in an
i ncrease of demand on social services. She stated that in order to
have a healthy Al askan econony, the University should be fully
f unded.

MARTA MUELLER, Student, University of Alaska testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks to urge the Commttee to fully fund
the University. She noted the scores of letters, phone calls, and
testinmony of individuals who have urged full funding of the
University system She sang the University of Alaska song to
accentuate her position of support.

JULIA PETERS, dient, [indiscernible] Program for Wnen and
Children, testified via teleconference from Fairbanks to voice

SFC- 02 (27) 04/ 18/ 02



opposition to a reduction in funding for such prograns. She stated
that Al aska nust address the issue of alcoholism and substance
abuse and that funding for treatnent prograns shoul d be increased.

HAROLD BROWN, President, Tanana Chiefs Conference testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks to object to proposed budget funding
reductions that negatively affect the Conference' s delivery of
“services to 42 villages that the Conference works for, including
t he Fairbanks Native popul ation.” He voiced di sagreenent with the
“slash and burn technique that is being used to address” the
State’s funding shortfalls rather than the devel opnent of a | ong-
range fiscal plan. He stated that it is incorrect to expect that
federal funding distributed to the Al aska Federation of Natives
woul d be able to fill the gap “as these federal funds could not be
used to supplant any services that are currently provided to the
villages or to Fairbanks Native popul ation through State funds.” He
informed the Commttee that prior attenpts to use the federal funds
to suppl enent the VPSO services in this manner fail ed.

MOLLY ANDREWS testified via tel econference from Fairbanks that too
many budget cuts could harmall Al askans. She stated that she has
personal | y experienced al cohol and drug abuse and has been enroll ed
in treatnment prograns. She noted that previous funding reductions
already require villagers to travel to larger communities to enter
treatment prograns; however, she stressed that it would be easier
to have those prograns within the village conmunity. She stated
t hat she supports treatnent program fundi ng.

VWAYNE MCCOLLUM Soci al Worker, Fairbanks Community Mental Health
Center and Program Director, Conmunity Support Program for the
Mentally 11l testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks that while
State funding for nmental health services has been decreasing since
1991, the costs of providing those services has steadily increased.
He asserted that individuals served by the programare “those | east
able to advocate for thenselves.” He contended that nore and nore
children are being sent out of State for assistance, and that
because | ocal capacities have decreased, adequate |ocal support is
not avail able for those children upon their return to the State. He
rem nded the Conmttee that the Al aska Psychiatric Institute has
| owered its bed capacity from 144 to 72 beds. He asserted that
there is not enough noney for these critical services; however, he
stressed that sufficient funding now would save the State nopney
over tine.

KARA MORI ARTY, President and CEO G eater Fairbanks Chanber of
Conmmerce, testified via tel econference from Fairbanks to informthe
Commttee that the Chanber’s business nenbership “strongly
supports” full funding of the University of Al aska and an increase

SFC- 02 (28) 04/ 18/ 02



in the K12 school funding fornula as neans to supply an econom c
i npetus for the State.

Ms. Moriaty continued that investing in the devel opnent of the
State’s natural recourses and inprovenents in the State’'s
transportation infrastructure would assist the State in grow ng and
novi ng beyond the years of fiscal restraints. She voiced that she
personal ly woul d prefer to forego her Permanent Fund D vi dend check
than have any taxes inposed to pay for State services.

JOSH HORST, Enpl oyee, University of Al aska Fairbanks and G aduat e,
University of Al aska Southeast testified via tel econference from
Fai rbanks to urge the Commttee to fully fund the University of
Al aska Board of Regents’ budget request. He voi ced appreciation for
the recent years of financial support and avowed that the
University has inproved and would continue to inprove when
sufficiently funded. He noted that University students and
graduates, through conmunity involvenent, contribute in nmany ways
to the State.

JACKI E MCAREE testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks and urged
the Commttee to not cut noney for alcohol treatnent prograns as
her nmom has worked hard to get sober and she does not “want her to
get drunk again.”

JULI E SHEFCHI K, 16-year-old high school student, testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks and inforned the Commttee that she
has served for three years in various capacities on the Board of
Directors for the North Star Borough Youth Court which conducts up
to four youth hearings and sentences on a weekly basis. She stated
that the Youth Court exerts positive peer pressure that 1is
denonstrated by Fairbanks having a lower recidivismrate than the
State average. She continued that the Youth Court has expanded its
program to provide for a Victim Ofender Mediation Program She
stated that a funding reduction in the community services matching
grant program “would cripple” the Youth Court’s ability to best
serve the conmmunity.

BEN M ANCEL testified via teleconference from Fairbanks to urge
full funding for the University of Alaska as flat funding or a
funding reduction would limt progranms offered by the University.

DOUG | SAACSON, Council Menber, City of North Pole, testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks and urged the Comrittee to address
the State’ s budget by encouragi ng econom c grow h and devel opnent
of the State’'s infrastructure. He stated that a reduction in
infrastructure resources negatively affects private businesses that
rely on the road systemto deliver goods and services. He thanked

SFC- 02 (29) 04/ 18/ 02



the Legislature for continuing to support the nunicipal assistance
program however, he voiced concern about the proposed funding
reductions in the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities. He opined that cuts to this Departnment are concentrated
in the Northern Region; however, he attested, that when funding
i ncreases, the Anchorage area appears to benefit. He stated that
the funding reductions are “not proportionally applied” as the
Northern Region suffers the nost. He encouraged the Commttee to
continue to fund the University of Alaska as its growmh positively
i npacts the Fairbanks region. He urged the Conmttee to support the
Nano- Technol ogy agreenent as it would benefit the State. He
stressed that the City of North Pole is concerned about the
i npl enentation of a State sales tax, as “it wouldn't be an
equitable systemfor the Municipality because the exenptions woul d
be determned by the State not by the locality.”

H B. TELLING testified via tel econference from Fairbanks to state
that “proper funding and new | eadership” of the University of
Al aska has enabl ed the University to becone a powerful force in the
State. He encouraged the Conmttee to fully fund the University’'s
budget request.

DEREK M LLER, President, Student Body, University of Al aska
Fai rbanks testified via teleconference from Fairbanks that
i ncreased funding has allowed the University to expand its prograns
and becone an integral part of the State’'s econony as well as
becoming “the driving force” in the State’s economc future. He
urged the Committee “to invest in the State’'s future” by investing
in the University.

JOE HARDENBROCOK, Student and Menber, Board of Regents, University
of Al aska Fairbanks, testified via tel econference from Fairbanks to
urge the Conmttee to fully fund the University of Alaska as the
University “is a key conponent of devel oping Al aska’ s econony.” He
stated that while the State “relies on devel opi ng natural resources
for a significant part of its budget,” he argued that the peopl e of
the State, particularly students educated through the University,
woul d be the State’ s next great resource.

OSCAR JONES, Enpl oyee, Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities, testified via teleconference from Fairbanks in support
of funding for roads, particularly the Dalton H ghway. He inforned
the Commttee that private contractors have conplinented the State
on the quality of road maintenance perforned at the budgeted
| evel s, and he attested that good enpl oyees would be laid off from
their positions if Departnment road nmaintenance funding were
reduced. He suggested the use of the Permanent Fund interest, as a
funding source for the State’s transportati on needs. He urged the

SFC- 02 (30) 04/ 18/ 02



Commttee to fund Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities at the level recommended in the Governor’s budget
pr oposal .

ERIN MCGRATH, Student, University of Alaska, testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks and stated that, as a new Al askan
resident, she realizes the unique challenges and opportunities that
Al aska has. She exclainmed that the University is one of these
opportunities as it provides excellent education opportunities and
contributes to the State’s econom ¢ success by allow ng residents
to remain in the State and get good jobs. She urged the Committee
to “not rob Alaskans of the opportunity to benefit from the
University” and she urged the Commttee to fully fund the
University' s budget request. She declared that she “woul d rather
pay State taxes than to watch the University wither due to | ack of
funding.”

JI M LYNCH, Associate Vice-President Finance, University of Al aska
testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks and spoke in support of
education funding for K12 and for the University. He voiced
appreciation for the wide variety of funding needs of the State and
he noted that, with his professional experience, the State mnust
limt the Permanent Fund D vidend and i nplenment a State incone and
sales tax in addition to inplenenting al cohol and cigarettes taxes
and ot her user taxes. He inplored the Commttee to act quickly as
it takes a consi derable anount of tine to establish new systens.

TAMW GANGULI testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks and urged
full funding for the University. She rem nded the Commttee that
medi cal education courses provided through the University could
address the State’s need to provide adequate nedical care to its
citizens. She stated that the University could provide the State
with a skilled workforce that woul d benefit the State’s econony.

MARTI N P. BRANVI LLE, Enpl oyee, Al aska Departnent of Transportation
and Public Facilities, testified via tel econference from Fairbanks
to voice that proposed cuts to the Departnent’s workforce woul d be
harnful to the State’s road system He reiterated other testifiers’
comments that private contractors could not performthe sane |eve
of road maintenance for as low a price as State personnel. He
stated that while contracting out road naintenance jobs would
reduce the nunmber of operators’ jobs, it would only result in
elimnating a few managenent positions.

| RENE PEYTON testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks and st at ed
that the State’'s senior citizen population is growi ng, and she
urged the Commttee to recognize this trend and fund correspondi ng
support services accordingly. She voiced support of user fees as a

SFC- 02 (31) 04/ 18/ 02



nmet hod to fund needed servi ces.

LI SA VILLANO, Student Menber, Al aska Conm ssion on Postsecondary
Education Board and Student, University of Alaska Fairbanks
testified via teleconference from Fairbanks to urge full funding
for the University. She thanked the Commttee for the support of
the University and the high school graduates Al aska Scholars
program whi ch, she attested, is an exanple of a successful program
She stated that retaining Alaska’s youth in the State is inportant
to the State’'s future.

TODD LARKIN testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks to decl are
that the majority of people who have been testifying rely on State
funds to support them He expressed that the belief is that if
prograns are not funded by the State that “the sun will fail to
rise, all children will starve, the elderly will die, and you wl|
be despi sed anong nen.” However, he stated, that if the Legislature
institutes a new Statewide tax, “then you would be revered.” He
expressed that he, a private jobholder, does not want to pay for
nore State funded prograns.

ALFRED KETZLER, Enpl oyee, Tanana Chiefs Conference testified via
tel econference from Fai rbanks to comment that the FY 03 proposed
general fund expenditures level is simlar to that of budget year
FY 76; however, he declared it should be sufficiently higher due to
inflation and increased denands. He voiced support for a State
inconme tax rather than a State sal es tax.

PAT SWEETSIR, Deputy Admnistrative Oficer, Tanana Chiefs
Conference testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks and spoke of
the harm that poor famlies would endure as a result of the
Per manent Fund Hold Harml ess Cause. He urged the Committee to
pursue a reasonable fiscal plan that woul d establish standards for
future budgeting needs.

BETTY DUPREE, 25-year Enpl oyee, University of Al aska, testified via
tel econference from Fai rbanks to voice that the funding provided to
the University during the last two years “has been instrunmental in
giving the University back the inpetus” that is required to create
new progranms needed by the citizens of the State. She asked the
Committee to fully fund the University’ s budget request.

RECESS 6:41 PM/ 7:15 PM
The follow ng witnesses testified in person in Juneau.

JODI RUWPH, a Juneau parent, inforned the Commttee that while she
does not like to pay taxes, she would support an al cohol tax and a

SFC- 02 (32) 04/ 18/ 02



two percent across-the-board State income tax to provide revenue
for State progranms. She acknow edged that the cost of Medicare is
rising, and she stated that early intervention would assist in
reduci ng Medi care costs.

SFC 02 # 68, Side B 07:15 PM

Ms. Runph stated that currently there is an eight-year wait |ist
for Medicare services, and she suggested that the Medi care funding
shoul d be equally distributed to program applicants.

MARC WHEELER, Menber, City and Borough of Juneau Assenbly,
expressed to the Conmttee that he was personally “shocked to hear
about the steep cuts” proposed by the Senate for the Division of
Al cohol and Drug Abuse prograns. He rem nded the Commttee of the
“huge problens” that occur in the State due to al cohol and drug
abuse and the high cost incurred to the State as a result of those
abuses. He stressed the need for “nore funding for treatnent
prograns not |ess,” and he contended that these treatnent prograns
do produce results. He urged the Conmttee to protect Al askan
famlies fromal cohol and drug abuse and to pass an al cohol tax to
support the endeavor.

JAMES KENWORTHY, Al aska Sci ence and Technol ogy Foundati on (ASTF),
infornmed the Commttee that ASTF is concerned about “the first ever
use of our endownent funds” for non-ASTF purposes. He inforned the
Conmittee that ASTF funds have been used to fund a wide variety of
concerns in the State including funds for nunerous start-up
busi nesses including seafood plants in Wangell and other
comunities and science research projects and training grants. He
urged the Conmittee to allow ASTF to have full access to its
ear ni ngs.

DAVID HULL, Fire Fighter, Paranedic, and Representative, Al aska
Council of Energency Medical Services (ACEMS), notified the
Committee that witten testinony [copy on file] has been submtted
from attendees at the organization’s recent Sitka Synmposium in
whi ch “imm nent doctors fromall over the world cane to Sitka to
rewite and review the Al aska State cold water near-drowning and
frostbite protocols.” He stated that synposiuns such as this would
be endangered if the proposed 25 percent cut in the energency
services grant were adopted. He stated that the public need for the
ACEMS services has increased; however, the funding has renai ned
flat. He stated that cuts in this program would weaken the
foundation for Statew de nedical progranms as these funds provide
for insurance coverage, fuel for anbulance and other energency
vehicles, training and certification. He stated that the results
could be “disastrous” for the basic energency needs of the State.

SFC- 02 (33) 04/ 18/ 02



Bl LL LEGERE, Manager, KTOO FM and TV Public Broadcasti ng addressed
t he proposed $69, 900 reduction in radio grants provided for in the
Publ i c Communi cat i ons Servi ces budget Depar t ment of
Adm ni stration. He asserted that this “two percent of the total”
reduction would trigger a loss of $130,000 in federal funding
support of public radio across the State.

STEPHEN SUNDBY, PHD, Adm ni strator, Juneau Recovery Hospital (JRH),
detailed the services the agency provides such as energency
services patrols, enmergency detoxification services and suicida
treatment care. He informed the Coormittee that the State has not
increased the funding for these types of agencies in ten years;
however, costs continue to rise. He stressed that further funding
reductions woul d cl ose the agency and be a di sservice to people who
do not have the financial nmeans to pay for such services.

CHRI STINE MCI NTYRE, Director, Anerican Lung Association of Al aska,
testified to urge the Commttee to fund the Tobacco Use, Educati on,
and Cessation programat the State reconmended | evel of 20 percent
of the total Master Tobacco Settlenent Fund. She reported the
positive results occurring as a result of the program and she
advi sed that when prograns are adequately funded, positive |ong-
term endeavors result.

KATHRYN ARLEN, Participant, Meeting the Chall enge Advocacy Program
and Volunteer for the Johnson Youth Center and Juneau Youth
Services identified herself as “a grateful recovering al coholic.”
She exclainmed “that treatnment works,” and she is a responsible
contributing menber of society. She urged the Conmittee to
reinstate the proposed 20 percent reduction in treatnent prograns
or to create a conduit fromthe public sector to a private provider
to allow these prograns to continue to be avail abl e.

MARK GRAVES, Student, University of Al aska Sout heast (UAS) urged
full funding support for the University. He stated that the
University systemis currently educating 32,000 students and has
7,000 enployees. He stated that for every general fund dollar
invested in the University system there is a four dollar and fifty
cent economic return within the State. He stated that reducing
prograns woul d j eopardi ze enrol | mrent nunbers by causing students to
seek an education el sewhere.

MCKENZI E MATAYA, Student, University of Al aska Southeast, urged
full support of UAS. She is currently a tel e-counsel or who narkets
the University to prospective students, and she woul d be pleased to
be able to continue to boast about the University's qualities
af forded by appropriate |levels of funding.

ERI C MORRI SON, Student, University of Al aska Sout heast urged ful
funding for the University. He stated that if education is
supported the State woul d benefit.

SFC- 02 (34) 04/ 18/ 02



Senat or Leman asked whether the testifier is aware of “how much the
Uni versity’s budget has increased annually in the past five years.”

M. Morrison responded that he was not aware of the exact anount.

Senator Leman stated that the University’'s budget has increased
$150 million. He voiced that he wanted to let the testifier know
“how nmuch the Legislature has chosen to support the University.”

M. Mrrison expressed that “it shows.” He thanked the Commttee
for the support.

JENNI FER LOESCH, Student, University of Alaska, thanked the
Commttee for the support of the University for she decl ared that
the nore students attending the in-State University system the
nore who would remain in the State and join the workforce. She
stated, “that support of the University creates hope and success”
for the future of the State.

SHYANN STEDMAN, Transfer Student, University of Al aska, has seen
t he school grow and devel op trenendous potential. She stated that
students fromall over the country are attending the University and
“falling in love” with the State, which provides the State with a
young growi ng wor kforce. She noted that she is a tel e-counsel or at
the University, and she expressed that “the affordability” of the
school has real appeal to prospective students.

MARI LYN PI LLI FANT, acconpani ed by THO R THOMAS, Teachers, Anchorage
School District, detailed the daily activities and responsibilities
i nvol ved when teaching 29 third grade students. She stated that
cl assroom si zes nmust be reduced in order to provide a teacher with
adequate tine to work with each student as well as to allow for
sufficient planning tinme. Using a classroom “w ndow pai nting” art
di agram she explained to the Conmttee that her classroom budget
consists of a $54 per student allotnent fromwhich she is required
to purchase school district standards printed materials totaling
$21 plus shipping as well as pay for use of the school copier to
publish newsl etters and ot her needed cl assroom naterial. She stated
that after all classroom obligations were deducted, the anount
remai ning “for discretionary spending” is $4 per student, which she
spent on glue and pencils.

Ms. Pillifant exclaimed that the only piece of new classroom
equi pnent she has encountered in her 14.5 years of teaching was new
student chairs. She stated that the school’s copying nachine
mal functions every day. She related that applying for grants
“creates this huge bureaucracy” which taxes any limted free tine

SFC- 02 (35) 04/ 18/ 02



she m ght have; therefore, she suggested that grants becone a
segnent of the State school funding foundation formula. She stated
that in order to nake the educational system function, parents,
teachers, and the community nmust be involved. She stressed that the
Legi sl ature nust be involved by providing appropriate school
fundi ng. She voiced that there is disparity between the schools in
every district in the State. She inplored the Committee to
“properly” fund education.

ANNETTE MARLEY, Representative, Al aska Native Health Board, thanked
the Senate for supporting the establishnent of the Tobacco Youth
Education and Cessation Fund the prior year and subsequently
allocating 20 percent of the State’s tobacco settlenent noney in
the FY 02 budget to support it. She stressed that the proposed
Senate FY 03 budget does not reflect that sanme | evel of comm tnent
to the program and she urged funding to continue at the 20 percent
| evel . She stated that while the organi zation she is representing
does not receive any of the tobacco settlenent noney for prograns,
the organi zation attests that the programworks and i s necessary to
ensure heal thier Al askans.

PAM WATTS, Executive Director, Advisory Board, Al coholismand Drug
Abuse Program expressed concern regarding “the crippling proposed
cuts to the Division of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse budget” which
woul d negatively inpact prograns in every region of the State. She

explained that the $4 million cut to treatnment grant prograns, in
particul ar, “would be devastating” since those prograns “have been
flat funded since 1992 with no increases for inflation.” She

detailed the inpact that al coholismhas on the State such as child
abuse, vehicular accidents, and hom cides, and she urged the
Committee to restore full funding to prograns because, she
asserted, treatnent does work.

FRANK WRI GHT, Student, Manley Hot Springs School, testified that
t he proposed budget cuts to the Elliot H ghway w nter maintenance
“woul d kill our community because half of the town would | ose their
jobs.” He stated that Manley Hot Springs is |ocated approxi mately
164 miles from Fairbanks.

HEI DI WRI GHT, Teacher, Manley Hot Springs School, stated that she
and her students raised noney in order to travel “hundreds of mles
to be here to talk with Legislators face to face” because “they
fear that their school and their hones would be brought to an end
by the State governnent.” She urged the Conmittee to consider the
“ripple effect” of budget cuts that would negatively affect the
comunity.

CRYSTAL MELTON, Fifth G ade Student, Manley Hot Springs inforned

SFC- 02 (36) 04/ 18/ 02



the Conmttee that her famly would be required to nove if road
mai nt enance i s not provided on the Elliot H ghway | eading to Manl ey
Hot Springs, because her step-father is enployed by Departnment of
Transportation and Public Facilities and would | ose his job. She
stressed that she does not want to | eave the comunity and that her
school provides a good education and “really is worth saving.”

DR. SUE CLIFTON, Principal, Mnley Hot Springs School stressed
“that no child in a State as great as Al aska should have to worry
so nuch about how to keep their school open” due to such things as
the State governnent denying road mai ntenance to their comrunity.
She urged the Conmttee to renmenber, “that every address is Al aska
is inmportant to our children” whether it is urban or rural. She
continued that were funding for rural education “killed directly or
indirectly, you kill all that is unique about the State and you
m ght as well represent California” or Montana or M ssissippi. She
urged the Commttee to renenber these Manl ey Hot Springs children
when deciding financing for rural education or road mai ntenance
funding leading to a small comunity that has a school

JOHN ROALETT, Student, Manley Hot Springs noted that the proposed
road mai ntenance budget cuts would have a “severe” inpact on his
school and small rural community. He stated that many famlies
would be required to nove resulting in the closure of the
community’s school and a further loss of jobs in the comunity.

DANE KOPONEN, Ei ghth Grade Student, Manley Hot Springs informed the
Commttee that he and other students have conme to Juneau to
specifically | obby for the “preservation of rural education.” He
stated that the effects of the proposed Departnment of
Transportation and Public Facilities budget cuts woul d “nean death”
to the community of Manley Hot Springs and its school.

CORI DART, Student, Manley Hot Springs asserted that no wi nter road
mai nt enance funding for the Elliot H ghway would indirectly close

the school. He attested that closing a school “in this manner is
just as shaneful as directly closing a school.” He asserted that
the d adys Dart School “is the lifeline of the community,” and he
continued that, *“it 1is our right to have and the state’s

responsibility to provide education to children no natter where
they live.” He exclained that rural education is just as productive
as education received in urban areas.

Senator Lenan stated that while he represents an urban area, he was
raised in rural Alaska, and he attests that rural areas can
“deliver” a good educati on.

Bl LL GLUDE, Director, Southeast A aska Aval anche Center thanked the

SFC- 02 (37) 04/ 18/ 02



Conmittee for the FY 02 public safety budget funding which allowed
the non-profit center to educate the public about aval anche safety.
He urged the Conmttee to consider increasing the funding to the
programin FY 03. He noted Al aska |leads the nation in per capita
aval anche deaths and is also the only state that does not have
formal governnment education or forecasting progranms relating to
aval anches. He supplied the Conmttee wth witten testinonies
[copies on file] in support of avalanche safety prograns from
t hroughout the State, and he asserted that, “aval anche deaths are
| argel y preventabl e through education.”

Senat or Aust erman asked whet her aval anche educati on could assist in
preventing snow machi ner deaths caused by “high marking.”

M. Gdude stated that education could help in this situation. He
asserted that while these deaths are often characterized as
resulting from*“risk takers;” he contended that these people are
just Al askans “going out recreating and don’t know better than to
go up a steep slope.” He shared with the Conmttee that nodern snow
machi nes are powerful and all ow snow nachiners to venture to nore
extrenme |ocations; however, he asserted, these people do not
perceive the situation to be dangerous. He stated that snow
machi ners conprise 67 percent of the aval anche deaths in the State.
He noted that the Southeast Al aska Aval anche Center has purchased a
hi gh power snow nmachi ne to denonstrate and better address teaching
snow nmachi ners about aval anche safety.

VIVI AN MONTOYA, Teacher, Juneau School District, asked the
Comm ttee to understand how inportant it is to fully fund education
to allow teachers to neet students’ needs. She stated that properly
teaching children involves providing significant financial support
and resources, qualified teachers, and a “trenendous conmtnent”
from Legislators, teachers and famlies. She attested that the
saying, “if kids are mad, bad or sad, they can’t add” denonstrates
t hat educators nust address the “whole child.”

SFC 02 # 69, Side A 08:03 PM

Ms. Montoya stated that children nust have all their basic needs
nmet in order to learn; therefore, she urged the Commttee to
adequately fund al cohol treatnent progranms as this issue affects
students’ | earning behavior.

Senator Leman identified and acknow edged that Ms. Montoya is the
Al aska Teacher of the Year.

SFC- 02 (38) 04/ 18/ 02



Senat or Austerman voi ced appreciation for the efforts Ms. Mntoya
and ot her teachers contribute to their students.

DEBRA GARRI SH, President, Red Al aska Child Abuse [unverified nanme
of organization] testified that the State needs nore, not |ess
State Troopers as child abuse is a very large problemin the State.
She continued that alcohol and nental health issues also affect
child abuse, and she attested that budget reductions affecting
these progranms negatively affect children. She continued that
proposed cuts to the Foster Care programare unfortunate, as these
services are needed in the State. She rem nded the Comm ttee that
the State Constitution requires the State to provide for health,
education, and safety, and she voiced that all of these things join
together to help protect children.

Dr. ROBERT SEWELL, Chair, University of Al aska Statew de Staff
Al'liance thanked the Conmttee for prior support of the University.
He informed the Conmmttee that McDowell Group surveys attest that
“things are blossonming” at the University, and he urged the
Legislature to fully fund the University’ s budget request to all ow
the school to continue that nonmentum and support President Mark
Ham [ ton’ s | eadership, “which has been remarkabl e i ndeed.”

VERNER STILLNER, Medical Director, Behavioral Health, Bartlett
Regi onal Hospital and Psychiatrist, Juneau Recovery Hospital (JRH)
stated that, “the war on drugs is failing and the war on treatnent
is succeeding.” He pleaded wth the Conmttee to not reduce
treatment prograns by the proposed 20 percent decrenent. He
informed the Commttee that while the State supplies 25 percent of
the JRH funding; the proposed 20 percent decrenent conbined with
the flat funding the Center has received for ten years would cl ose
the facility. He stated that the JRH clients “are not always
| i keabl e, they relapse, they contribute to donestic violence and
fetal alcohol syndrone; however, they are people with chronic
illnesses.” He stated that treatnent does work.

Co- Chair Donl ey announced that there being no further testinony,
this concludes approximately ten hours of public testinony that the
Senate Finance Conmttee has accepted regarding the Operating
Budget .

Senat or Austerman voi ced appreciation for the testinony and for the
suggestions as to how to bal ance the budget, garner new revenue,
and pay for services throughout the State.

Co-Chair Donley ordered the bills HELD in Conmittee.
#

SFC- 02 (39) 04/ 18/ 02



ADJ QURNIVENT

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey adjourned the neeting at 08:15 PM

SFC- 02 (40) 04/ 18/ 02



